
2015 HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES 

HB 1410 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

HB 1410 
2/2/2015 

Job #22980 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Provide an appropriation to the Head Start Program. 

Minutes: Testimon 1-6 

Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on HB 1410. 

Rep. Kathy Hawken: From District 46 introduced and supported the bill. Head Start is an 
amazing program because it provides for the children socialization, caring, education piece 
and in addition it has for the family unit to have a place to have a community. Many are 
single parents and get to volunteer. It helped over 2,000 children last year. I believe the 
waiting list is about 750. We got some federal dollars in the western part of the state which 
is helping out there. In this current legislative session we have already heard that we need 
to watch the dollars. I would ask that you put in a contingency so this bill could move 
forward. There are two other bills out there that deal with early childhood education. The 
governor's bill and SB 2254 which is universal per say. They are all pieces of the puzzle. 
They are all possible solutions. They are important. The research shows how much value 
is in the first three to five years. Head Start gives them a chance for success in life. We 
are one of very few states that does not put any general fund money into preschool Head 
Start. We have enough money to take care of those young wonderful minds. I ask this 
committee to keep this bill alive. 

6:30 
Chairman Weisz: In your former committee life, do you have any idea where the federal 
funding has gone for Head Start? 

Rep. Hawken: In the State of ND? 

Chairman Weisz: Yes in the State of ND. 

Rep. Hawken: I do not. I know we don't get enough money; especially in the eastern part 
of the state. I will find out where the money goes. 
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Rep. Porter: The target group in the bill is low income or at risk children, but there isn't any 
guidelines to say what is the income level, is it 130% of poverty? 

Rep. Hawken: It is a 100%. 

Rep. Porter: There is an "or" between low income and at risk children. How are the at risk 
children determined? Is it income first and then something else on top of it? 

Rep. Hawken: That is a good question and one the advocates have been discussing. 
don't think there is a definition of at risk in the Century Code. That would need to 
addressed. 

Allison Drieseen: (See Testimony #1) 

17:47 
Rep. Mooney: What is your definition of at risk is? 

Drieseen: We have an application process that scores children. If they are 4 years old 
they have a higher score because they are one year before going to school. If it is a single 
parent family. If a disability that would be extra points. Referrals from other agencies and 
the majority of my referrals come from social services or special education units. Working 
GED or a job training program. All of those things identify who has the greatest need for 
the program. 

Chairman Weisz: What are your sources of income? 

Drieseen: Federal dollars. We had a 5. 27% cut with the see quest ration which was later 
returned to us. We have a match of every $1. 00 received we have to match 25 cents back 
to that. We do that through parent volunteering hours and reduced services. I get reduced 
rent because I am located in a number of schools and I can count that as a federal match. 
We dentists that will give us a reduced rate. Nursing students might come in and we can 
use that to balance our federal dollars. 

Rep. Porter: Are there local school tax dollars that are spent also inside the program such 
as sponsorship and any other state dollars through DHS in the form of grants to the 
program? 

Drieseen: There are not local tax dollars that go into programs. A number of programs 
have partnerships with public schools. I have a pre-kindergarten program with the Rugby 
public school and we have cost allocated Head Start and local dollars to serve all children. 
We serve 36 children there and you can't tell the difference between a Head Start kid and a 
pre-k kid because they receive the same services. There are two programs in ND that 
utilize childcare assistance dollars and may offer some wrap around services for families. 
Some funding from special education units where the Head Start classroom serves as the 
pre-school special needs classroom. 
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Rep. Porter: The comment about the 750 children on a waiting list, do you have the 
demographics of where those children are and what component of the service is missing 
that they aren't being served? 

Drieseen: We know the majority of those children are in the eastern part of the state. My 
program has 7 sites and we have 80 children on the waiting list. What is misleading is that 
a lot of these children on the waiting list are over income. But, if we were able to have state 
funds for Head Start and move the guidelines to 185% of poverty, families of 4 are only 
making $40,000. We could serve a huge portion of the 750 children. My dream is to be 
able to partner with a pre-kindergarten program for instance in Maddock and Head Start 
would add some funding to the existing pre-k program. Then we would make sure we had 
the low income children going to that local pre-k and providing the wrap around services to 
those classrooms. 

Rep. Porter: So the 750 children on the waiting list really aren't on a waiting list. They 
don't have the ability to pay for the existing program. 

Drieseen: They are on a waiting list. Classrooms are full and we can't go over a certain 
number of our ratios so they are on a waiting list. 

Rep. Porter: I'm unclear, in the bill we are talking about targeting low income and at risk, in 
the program you are doing an enrollment with scores that are based on income, age of 
child and risk factors. Then the purpose of the dollars is to raise the income levels from 
100% of poverty to 180% of poverty? 

Drieseen: I might have misled you with that. There are so many options that could come 
out of this bill. It could be new slots, a new classroom in Fargo, expanding from a 3 hour 
day to a 6 hour day, moving home based children into center based, looking at serving the 
working poor and there are lots of options that this bill could create for programs. 

Rep. Oversen: What is the age difference of Early Start and Head Start programs? 

Drieseen: Early Start is prenatal to age 3. Head Start is 3-5. 

Rep. Oversen: The way the bill is written is a grant program and the OHS will oversee that 
so any program can apply for all of the options you list, correct? 

Drieseen: Correct. 

Jay Watson: A parent whose children have attended Head Start testified in support of the 
bill. (See Testimony #2) 

34: 28 
Dawn Williams: Director of the ND Head Start Association and read the testimony of Dr. 
Sharon Hansen the Director of the Community Action Partnership Head Start Program. 
(See Testimony #3) Also handed out testimony of Kim Jacobson, Director of Traill County 
Social Services in Hillsboro, ND. (See Testimony #4) 
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42:28 

Karen Ehrens: Representing the ND Economic Security and Prosperity Alliance testified in 
support of the bill. (See Testimony #5) Also testified on behalf of herself who is an RN and 
mother. (See Testimony #6) 

49:05 

Rep. Rich Becker: You and I have worked together in the past on common goals. There 
are so many dollars going for so many causes. If you have more parents involved would 
you feel comfortable in making a comment on that? 

Ehrens: It is hard to get parents involved in their children's education. Head Start provides 
an excellent model as a way to involve and engage parents in their children's education. 
Working together we can solve problems and we have to keep trying to engage those 
families. 

NO OPPOSITION 

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on HB 1410. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Provide an appropriation to Head Start. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Weisz: HS 1410 , that is Head Start. I visited with the bill sponsor and I know 
there are a lot of things floating out there that is pre-K. The bill sponsor would definitely like 
to keep this bill alive and understands it will have a tough time in appropriations. There is a 
suggested amendment of taking the appropriations from $5 million down to $ 4,900 . 

Rep. Mooney: I make a motion to amend the sum of $5 million to $ 4,900 on page 1 line 4 .  

Rep. D. Anderson: Second. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIED 

Rep. Oversen: I move a Do Pass as amended on HS 1410 . 

Rep. Fehr: Second. 

Roll Call: 12 y 0 n 1 absent. 
MOTION CARRIED 

Bill Carrier: Rep. Hofstad 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

INTITIAL HEARING 
to provide an appropriation for head start programs 

Minutes: 7 Attachments 

Chairman Flakoll called the committee to order at 9:05am. 

Kathy Hawken, District 46 Representative 
Representative Hawken: this bill in its original form had a bit more money, but we lowered 
the amount considerably. I think it is imperative that we do something with Pre-K. I am 
hoping that both bills will pass and we can combine them together so that Head Start could 
also receive some of the funding. We are one of the very few states that doesn't allocate 
general funding to Head Start. This program is very good and a big factor for this is that it 
has a parental component. In fact North Dakota has the national parent of the year (who 
will testify later). They are involved and it makes a positive difference to the children. I ask 
sincerely that you consider passing this bill. 

Chairman Flakoll: It's $4,900? 
Representative Hawken: We would like to see a way to work with the other Pre-k bill and 
figure out how we can bring in some of those children as well. If we can't do anything else, 
it will at least pay the printing for next year. I would love to have the $5M that was originally 
in there, but I know that that is not reasonable particularly with all of the uncertainties; 
however the uncertainties make this program even more important. We can do amazing 
things in conference committee, and that is what I am hoping will happen. 
Chairman Flakoll: The vote was 64-29 in the House. 
Representative Hawken: Yes, which was pretty good. 
Chairman Flakoll: If we amend this bill, you will have to vote on it again. 
Representative Hawken: I know it won't be in conference committee, but the other one 
would. 
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Chairman Flakoll: Was there any discussion in the House about the ability to accept 
grants? We've heard of organizations that are exploring the option of donating up to $10M 
for education in this state. 
Representative Hawken: We have not had that discussion, but it is certainly a possibility. 
Chairman Flakoll: What are we covering in this state? 
Representative Hawken: I will defer that question. I know that it doesn't cover every part of 
the state, but the coverage is better than you would think. There's simply just not enough 
room and not enough money 

Senator Davison: Is it typical in other states that it goes through the Department of Human 
Services instead of Education? 
Representative Hawken: It varies from state to state and depends on where the more 
favorable people are. There is not a specific reason and it is probably about half and half 
because it is federal. 

(9:55) Pamela Anderson, District 41 Representative 
Representative Anderson: I'm disturbed by our lack of funding for early childhood 
education in the state. When I was knocking on all of the doors and visiting with people, I 
didn't find anyone who was opposed to early childhood education in my district. The only 
thing I ever heard was that it is a federal program. Yes it is a federal program, but we take 
federal money for roads and other programs as well. I think we should add some state 
money for Head Start. 

(13:10) Allison Johnson, Executive Director of Mayville State University Child 
Development Programs (see attachment #1 & #1.1) 

(21:40) Senator Schaible: You said that all children are placed on an IEP? 
Johnson: It is an individualized education program that offers goals specific to their needs, 
but it is not the same as IEP's through special education. 

Senator Marcellais: I think this is an excellent program. Do you know our former director 
Jennifer Ramey? 
Johnson: Yes I have known Jennifer for the last 25 years, and I know she has had a 
successful program. 
Senator Marcellais: I testified on the national level for the federal program when I was 
Tribal Chairman. It is interesting to go to that meeting. Have you had that opportunity? 
Johnson: Yes we have. Head start has proven to have an impact for all children across the 
United States. 

Senator Davison: What is the total funding for Head Start now in North Dakota? 
Johnson: Currently there is $21 M coming into the state. 
Senator Davison: With this $5M, did anyone put a budget together? What are the 
priorities- decrease the waiting list or expand the program? 
Johnson: Currently the cost per child is between $5, 000-9, 000 depending on how the 
program operates. These programs are community based so depending on who the 
grantee is, that is how the program is designed. It varies on the community model. We are 
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looking at about $8000 per child. Hopefully we will be able to serve the children on the 
waiting list with priority going to 4 year olds then to 3 year olds after. 
Senator Davison: Would the Department of Human Services develop a block grant system 
and people would apply for the dollars depending on what they determine t.hey want to do? 
Johnson: Yes, that would work. Currently funds that come from the federal level come 
directly to the school district or University to operate the program. Something similar to that 
system would work. It is something we are used to and how we operate now. 
Senator Davison: Are you familiar with how the AmeriCorps program works in Fargo with 
the Head Start Program? 
Johnson: I am familiar with the AmeriCorps, but not specifically how they work with Fargo. 

(26:35) Vice Chairman Rust: What are the sizes of the programs? 
Johnson: Some of the programs may be home-based and serve 1 to 2 children in the 
family or it could be as large as Fargo's that is serving almost 300 children. They are all 
individualized and community based. They work collaboratively with their school districts or 
childcare partners. We are layering the funding and we feel are being the best stewards of 
that money. 
Vice Chairman Rust: It's about $5,000-9,000 per child? 
Johnson: Correct. It is because of the comprehensive services such as providing the 
health, mental health, nutrition, education and more. The amount changes across 
communities based on the model that they choose. That is the unique part about a 
community driven program. You can best meet the needs of your own community. Some 
programs provide 5-days a week all day programing while others provide half. 

Senator Davison: Is the curriculum consistent throughout the state or individualized to 
each organization? 
Johnson: It is research-based curriculum. Each program has to align with federal child 
outcomes. We must also meet an assessment tool to assess those child outcomes. 
Grantees are able to select the type of curriculum, but all must measure the child 
outcomes. 

Vice Chairman Rust: You said you were with Mayville State University. How many others 
programs are with one of higher education institutions? 
Johnson: Currently we are the only North Dakota grantee that is part of a University. 

Senator Oban: A lot of legislatures like the parent component. Will you explain that 
interaction? 
Johnson: It is one of the cornerstones in place since 1965. Every Head Start program is 
required to have a policy council. Parents are involved with shared decision making with 
the program. They also participate in volunteer activities and we provide opportunities for 
parents to gain skills with parent training and family nights. Each community has to develop 
what types of activities are appropriate to their parents. 
Senator Marcellais: There are grandparent activities as well so I see the importance of the 
program in which the community reaches out the parents. You mention that it would take 
care of 750 children in the state. Where are they located? 
Johnson: These children are located all over the state, both in big and small communities. 
We hope to cover all 750 kids if it's possible. 
Senator Marcellais: Do you see an increase in the oil area? 
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Johnson: We are actually seeing a divide of those that have and those that have not. 
There is a huge issue with being able to provide services and getting qualified staff in that 
area because of the high salaries. Head start is not one of these flush organizations; we get 
just enough money to meet the needs of the families we are serving. 

(35:20) Jay Watson, single parent and National Head Start Association's Parent of the 
Year recipient (see attachment #2) 

Senator Marcellais: When will you be in Washington? 
Watson: We are leaving on the 28th and we will be at the conference until the 3rd of April. 

(43:05) Josef Kolosky, Director of West River Head Start (see attachment #3) 

Senator Marcellais: How many children are in your school? 
Kolosky: At West River Head Start, we have 152 children. Our program covers children 
within 5,000 square miles of area. 
Senator Marcellais: What is your budget? 
Kolosky: $1.4M currently. 

(51:25) Karen Ehrens, ND Economic Security and Prosperity Alliance (see attachment #4) 

Chairman Flakoll: Did the coalition vote on this? 
Ehrens: We've looked at the issues that will help build assets and we allowed the members 
who don't want to be publicly noted as supporting to opt out of being listed on this list. 
Chairman Flakoll: Did anyone opt out? 
Ehrens: No, I don't think anyone did. 

(54:45) Karen Ehrens, Registered Dietitian and mother (see attachment #5) 

Senator Marcellais: These may be some of the only meals that the Head Start children are 
receiving. Do you think they should hire a nutritionist for these programs? 
Ehrens: I believe it is the policy that the menus need to be at least reviewed by a dietitian. 
In many cases, with good training, the staff in the programs can do a good job of providing 
balanced meals, but perhaps they could further benefit from a dietitian. 

Chairman Flakoll closed the hearing on engrossed HB 1410. 

Testimonies in support handed in separate from hearing (see attachments #6-7) 
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ACTION 

Minutes: II No Attachments 

Chairman Flakoll called the committee to order at 10:45am with all committee members 
present. 

Senator Davison makes a motion for a DO PASS on engrossed HB 1410. 
Senator Oban seconds the motion. 

Senator Oban: I wish there was more than $4900 in this. 

A vote was taken: 6 yays, 0 nays, 0 absent 
The motion passes 6-0. 

Senator Davison will carry the bill. 
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Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, I am pleased to appear before you today to testify in 

support of House Bill 1410. My name is Allison Driessen, I am the Program Director of Early 

Explorers Head Start, and Early Head Start, a grantee agency of the Towner-Granville- Upham 

School District with Head Start classrooms located in Anamoose, Devils Lake, Harvey, Rugby, 

Towner, Turtle Lake and Velva. I am also the President of North Dakota Head Start 

Association. The Association represents over 3200 low income children, prenatal to age five, 

and families served by fourteen programs. 

What happens in early childhood can influence a lifetime of learning for every child. Research 

supports high-quality pre-kindergarten programs as an effective strategy to improve education 

achievement. Studies show that children who attend high quality pre-kindergarten programs 

enter kindergarten with better language, reading, math and social skills .  They have fewer grade 

retentions, less remediation, higher standardized scores and higher graduation rates. 1 

• Since its beginning in 1965, Head Start's goal has been to boost the school readiness of low­

income children. Based on a whole child model, the program provides comprehensive services 

that include research based preschool education, medical, dental and mental health care, nutrition 

services, and support to parents to foster their child's development. 

• 

There are thirteen Head Start programs in North Dakota serving over 2000 income eligible 

children ages 3-5  in North Dakota. Head Start programs collaborate with school districts, child 

care, universities and other community partners to provide services in areas as small as 

Anamoose and Gwinner and as large as Grand Forks and Fargo. There are over 120 Head Start 

classrooms in North Dakota. 

To be eligible for enrollment, families must complete an application, which scores families based 

on income, age of child, risk factors and family demographics to determine which families have 

1 National Research Council and Institute of Medicine (2000) From neurons to neighborhoods: 

The science of early childhood development. Committee on Integrating the Science of Early 

Childhood Development. Jack P. Shonkoff and Deborah A. Phillips, eds. Board on Children, 

Youth, and Families, Commission on Behavioral and Social Sciences and Education. 

Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press 

1 
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the greatest need for services. A family of four cannot earn more than $23,850 to be eligible for 

the program. A single parent with one child may not earn more $ 15,800. Ten percent of 

enrollment is reserved for over income families. As of December 2014, there are 750 children on 

waiting lists for Head Start services across the state of North Dakota. Most of the families on the 

waiting list are the working poor and cannot afford preschool or high quality childcare. 

Head Start programs are guided by the Head Start Federal Performance Standards mandating 

programs to comply with over 2000 regulations. Head Start programs are monitored on a 

triennial cycle and are responsible for monthly, quarterly and annual reporting requirements. 

Head Start curriculum and environments are research based and focus on development through 

child directed experiences that provide play based opportunities for exploration, problem-solving 

skills, and flexibility and encourage a love of learning. 

Head Start has a long history of data collection and analysis of young children. The fol lowing 

charts demonstrate achievements of 4-year-old children that participated in Head Start in 20 13 -
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How is Head Start different that Pre-Kindergarten? Head Start focuses on the overal l  

development of  the child and family. All  children receive a physical, dental exam, developmental 

screening, vision and hearing screening, nutrition assessment, mental health assessment and have 

individualized education plans. Head Start nurses and caseworkers help families establish a 

medical home with a primary physician instead of utilizing the emergency room. 

The second difference is that the program works directly with parents to strengthen adult skills, 

which results in better child outcomes. Parents are connected to resources, set goals, receive 

parent education, home visits, opportunities for volunteering and serve on advisory boards. 

According to a study by Walberg, family participation in education is twice as predictive of 

students' academic success as family socioeconomic status.2 Growing strong families means 

helping parents connect with resources to get out of poverty and become advocates for their 

children. 

Why should North Dakota invest in a federal program? Head Start is serving North Dakota's 

most vulnerable children. Our highest priority is to serve children in foster care, homeless and 

children who are at risk. The same children who will enter public school not ready. Head Start 

programs lack sufficient funding to ensure educational quality. Fourteen states including 

2 W alberg (1984) in his review of 29 studies of schoo l-parent programs 

3 
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Wisconsin, Oklahoma and Alaska supplement the federal funding and help close the funding 

shortfall required for quality Head Start education. Additional state funding is often used to 

expand the number of funded slots in the state's Head Start program. In some cases, the funds 

are used for quality improvements, such as extended day and teacher salary enhancements. 

House Bill 1410 would expand services to at risk children through additional Head Start slots, 

extending service hours of existing part day programs or enhance quality services by 

collaborating with local school districts and childcare to meet the needs of families. Head Start 

programs are especially interested in expanding eligibility using state dollars to serve the 

working poor who do not meet income eligibility. 

Head Start has fought a long battle disputing the myth of fade out effect. The Impact Study 

shows that while Head Start children arrive at kindergarten academically ahead of their peers, 

these children eventually catch up to the Head Start children. This is referred to as "fading out." 

Children without Head Start experience catch up, the Head Start children do not "fade out." 

Head Start children perform on par with their peers demonstrating that Head Start helps to 

eliminate the achievement gap. 

Head Start Works. There are nationally recognized, long-term, Head Start specific research 

studies documenting the benefits of Head Start programs. All programs have data and track 

school readiness outcomes documenting the positive impacts of their program. Head Start 

programs produce well-documented, internationally recognized results :  

• Reduced mortality rates of young children 
• Higher vocabulary levels 
• Better emotional development (less challenging behaviors), 
• Fewer children referred to and placed in special education classes 
• Fewer grade repetition 
• Increased high school graduation rates 
• Significant impact on long-term outcomes of adults 19 years or older who attended Head 

Start, higher wages, better relationships (less domestic violence), etc. 
• And, Families moving out of poverty 
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As the academic achievement stakes continue to rise, policy makers must recognize that 

preparing children for school is a shared responsibility between the parents and the community. 

I n  a majority of communities across North Dakota high quality, early childhood education 

opportunities do not exist. Local school districts rely on federal, state and local funding to 

provide high quality education. Head Start urges the legislative assembly to recognize this is also 

true of services to our most at risk young children. The support of this committee will be a first 

step in ensuring that children and families can overcome risk factors and succeed in school and 

in life. The success of every child translates to a more competitive workforce, a greater tax base 

while reducing public expense in special education costs, public assistance, crime control and 

lost taxes. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on behalf of House Bill 1410. I welcome any questions 

from the committee. 

• Allison Dybing-Driessen 
Early Explorers Head Start 

• 

1401 College Drive North, Devils Lake, ND 58301 
allison.driessen@k 12 .nd. us 
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Director Address 
Tammy Hoggarth 1411 12th Avenue NE 
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- • BxpyB . 
Allison• 1401 College Drive N 

Allison Johnson 3303rdStNE 

DavidDoty 3233 S University 
Drive 

Jennifer Ramey 1010 Carol James 
Street 

Dr. Jerry Jonnson 3600 6th Ave North 

Dr. Sharon Hansen 107 3rd Avenue SE 

Josef Kolosky 1007 18th St NW 
Carmelita Bear Ribs 200 Proposal Avenue 

Laurel Nybo 720 North 14th St 

Kelly Bradfield 509 9th St North 

CDI HS Serving 1805 Main St. 
Williams Co. Concordia Church 
Roxanne Wells 412 2ndAveN 

City /State/Zip Phone 
Jamestown, ND 58401 701-252-1821 

Minot, MD 58702 101-867-4618 

DeviJs Lake, ND 701-665-4452 

Mayville, ND 58257 701-788-4868 

Fargo, ND 58104 701-235-8931 

Belcourt, ND 58316 701-477-0260 

Grand Forks, ND 58203 701-746-2433 

Dickinson, ND 58601 701-227-3010 

Mandan, ND 58554 701-667-8668 

Fort Yates, ND 58537 605-425-2o63 

Bismarck, ND 58501 701- 323-
4400 

New Town, ND 58763 701-627-4820 

Williston, ND 58802 701-609-4003 

Fort Totten, ND 58335 701-766-4070 

Online 
cap6.com/programs/headstart.htJn 

--
- -

----

__ , - - -

mayvillestate.edu/community-
services-grant-programs/child-
develooment-oroerams/head-start/ 
eendeuhea�-- --1 

htm:lltmbci,kkbold.i:mnl1>rommal 
?program_id=31 

gfschools.org/pages/gfschools 

dickinson.k12.nd.us/early_childhood/ 

hitinc.org/services/west-river-head-
start/ 
headstart.standingrock.org/?id=2 

bismarck.kl2.nd. us/BECEP /head-
start-/ 

mhanation.com/ 

spiritlakenation.com/sltheadstart.htm 

For a Head Sta rt/Ea rly Head Sta rt P rogram i n  you r  a rea, please visit: htti2:LLecl kc.ohs.acf. hhs.govLhslcLHeadSta rtOffices 

Head Start State Collaboration Office: Mark Schaefer - Administrator 

Email: marschaefer@nd.gov: 600 East Boulevard Ave, Dept. 325: Bismarck, ND 58505-0250 

For more i nformation ,  p lease visit our  website at :  www. nd .govLdhsLservicesLchildfa m ilyLhea dsta rtLsites. html .  
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orth Dakota Head Start 

Since its begi n n ing in  1965, Head Start's goal has been to boost the school readi ness of low- income 

ch i ldren .  Based on a whole ch i ld model, the program provides comprehens ive services that inc lude: 

c::> preschool education; 

c::> medical, denta l, a nd menta l hea lth care; 

c::> n utrition services; a nd 

c::> support to parents to foster the i r  ch i ld's development. 

Facts and Figures 
Head Start a ims to ensure that the most vu lnera b le ch i ldren in ND enter kindergarten hea lthy and 
ready to succeed. 
c::> N D  Head Start serves over 2,000 children each year. 

c::> As of December 2014, over 750 fami l ies had app l ied for ND Head Start but were unserved. 

c::> 92% of respondents to the NDHSA School Readiness Survey i ndicated that the Head Start program 

most prepares Children for Kindergarten. NDHSA School Readiness Survey, February 2012 

c::> The Census Bureau estimates that 19% of ND ch i ldren  ages 0-4 (8,183 ch i ldren) l ived i n  poverty. 
North Dakota KIDS COUNT 2012 

Demonstrating Results: Child Progress in ND Head Start 
ND Head Start uses research-based assessment tools to measure ch i ld deve lopment a nd he lp  parents .understand how to boost their ch i ld's phys ica l, emotiona l, social a nd cogn itive growth .  Th e fo l lowing 
charts demonstrate ach ievements of 4 year o ld ch i ldren that partic ipated in  ND Head Start in  2013-

2014. 
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Why Is Early Learning Important? 
The science on children's brain development is clear: the years from birth through age 5 are crucial. 

Studies in the past two decades have shown that the early years lay the foundation for children's 

success in life or create early roadblocks. 

Key findings are: 

¢ The first five years of life are a time of tremendous growth. Ch i ldren  are 

growing physica l ly, socia l ly, emotiona l ly and inte l l ectua l ly .  

¢ Chi ldren's bra ins grow more ra pidly in these early years than at a ny other 

time of l ife. 

¢ Children are natura l ly eager to learn . Their environment has a major impact 
on their capacity to learn . 

¢ A safe, caring and n urturing environment boosts a child's a bility to learn. So 

do stimu lating activities a nd interactions with parents a nd caregivers . 

The reverse is also true. A child who experiences extreme poverty, neglect, 

"Head Start staff 

provided my son with a 

wonderful learning 

environment during 

the most crucial years 

of his life before age 

five when his brain 

was developing the 

fastest it ever will." 

BECEP Head Start 

Parent 

abuse, family violence or substance abuse, or whose parents have severe depression, may be in a 

constant state of stress. This toxic stress disrupts the child's brain growth and can impact all areas of 

development. 

Early Childhood Intervention is Critical 
Without high-qua lity early childhood intervention, we know that a n  at-risk child is: 
¢ 25% more like ly to drop out of school 

¢ 40% more likely to become a teen  parent 

¢ 50% more like ly to be p laced in specia l  education 

¢ 60% more l i ke ly never to attend col lege 

¢ 70% more l i ke ly to be arrested for a violent crime 
Ounce of Prevention Fund (2012) 

Return on Investment 
Early childhood programs are the most cost-effective way to ensure the 

healthy development of children in poverty and offer the greatest returns 

to SOci ety. Ounce of Prevention Fund {2012} 

¢ Early childhood programs for low-income chi ldren report returns between 
$4 a nd $9 for every do l lar invested in these programs. Harvard's Center o n  the 

Developing Child 

¢ Careful  academic research demonstrates that tax do l lars spent on ECD 
provide extraordinary returns compared with investments in the pub lic, 
and even private, sector. The potentia l return from a focused, high-qua lity 
ECD program is as h igh as 16 percent per year. 11

Early Childhood Development on a 

Large Scale" June 2005 Rob Grunewald and Art Ro/nick's proposal for investment in early childhood 

education 

¢ Qua lity economic returns come from qua lity investment in early 
childhood deve lopment. The Heckman Equation Project, www.heckmanequation.org 

¢ As adults, children who were in high-qua lity early learn ing programs had 

higher earnings, pa id more taxes, were hea lthier a nd were less like ly to 

require Welfare Or Crimina l  justice COStS. Barnett, 1996; Pew Center for the States, 2011; 

RAND Corporation; 2008, Reynolds, Temple, White, Ou & Robertson, 2011 

z 

Congratulatio..s! 
N11tionll Heid Start Anoc:l11fon 

Jay is a Head Start 

'success story.' He has 

literally pulled himself 

up and out of poverty 

by hard work, grit, and 

relentless determina­

tion. I have heard him 

say numerous times, "I 

want to provide for my 

kids." Written of Jay 

Watson, West River 

Head Start Parent, 

National Head Start 

Association Parent of 

the year. (pictured above) 
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My name is Jay Watson .  I am 36 years old and a s ingle parent of three chi ldren who have 
attended the West River Head Start prog ram in Mandan.  My eldest daughter Tyra - for two 
years ;  my youngest daughter Adriahna - for one year; and my son Dexter - for three years . 
As a chi ld , I did not attend Head Start or kindergarten .  When I started first g rade, I had 
d ifficu lty fol lowing classroom ru les . I d idn't  like school ,  and I cou ld n't wait to go home and 
play. Over the combined s ix yea rs my chi ldren have been enrol led in  Head Start, I have 
watched my chi ld ren g row and learn and develop an appreciation for school .  

Tyra , my oldest, is now a senior in hig h school .  She is a g reat student, has a lways been 
able to make friends and truly enjoys school .  As a resu lt of the ski l ls she learned while 
enrol led in Head Start, she made a seamless transition into kindergarten and then first 
g rade. I attribute m uch of her abil ities, attitude, and appropriate school behaviors from the 
time she spent at Head Start .  My youngest daug hter, Ad riahna is 8 and is in  2nd g rade. 
She has h ig h  energy and a g reat personality. The social ski l ls she learned at Head Start, 
combined with the classroom atmosphere ,  have real ly helped her excel .  Ad riahna loves to 
read and write. She is fascinated by science and is one of the best students in her class . 
M y  son Dexter is now 6 and in kindergarten .  He loves to go to school, he is great at 
fol lowing classroom directions, and by h is teachers account one of the smartest kids in h is 
class. 

As a parent,  I have always tried to actively participate in a l l  aspects of my chi ldren's l ives. 
often see the advertisements on benches or signs that say "Dad , Be There" and it motivates 
me. As a ch ild my father traveled often for work , so I know first-hand the importance of 
being involved and what that means to my chi ldren .  Three years ago when my children 
Started Head Start I was unemployed . I was able to attend every special event and parent 
hour  they had in class and Started volunteering extra time and fu l l  days too. I even g ot to 
the point that I was asked to volunteer in  a th ird class where my kids d idn't  attend and I was 
happy to help.  I learned a lot about the Head Start program and was able to bu i ld 
friendships with many students. Most im portantly I was able to watch my kids g row and 
develop alongside the other chi ldren in  the classrooms.  

The last two years Dexter spent at  Head Start I was working ful l-time .  After the g reat first 
year we had I m issed spend ing so m uch time in the classroom. However, I am very 
fortunate that I have a great boss that al lowed me to take time off and spend it with my kids 
at school. I had been able to attend every parent hour and special  fu nction .  In a contin ued 
effort to remain involved in my chi ldren's ed ucation I ran for policy cou nci l  in Dexter's 
classroom and was appointed Vice Chairperson which in turn led to Chairperson .  The more 
involved I became, the more I realized the importance this environment had on my children. 

Head Start has had as strong of an impact on me as a parent as it has on my child ren .  The 
leadership skills that I have learned while being involved with their prog ram have helped me 
to be a better parent, improved my relationships with coworkers, and helped in my personal 
l ife. Being on Pol icy Cou ncil has inspired me to join the PTO at Lewis and C lark where my 
kids now attend school .  This is my second year and I am currently Vice President. I am 
a lways advocating for the students and I'm trying to bring the same family atmosphere to 
the PTO and to the school that I enjoyed so much from being part of Head Start and its 
policy cou ncil. Head Sta rt's conscience discipl ine prog ram has also helped me become a 
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better parent and interact with my chi ldren in the same way they do at school to create 
consistency in our  l ives .  

Since leaving Head Start the positive effect i t  h a s  left on m y  chi ldren i s  clear. 

Tyra is a straight A student and is very outgoing . She has been in vol leybal l ,  track, 
cheerlead ing student managed for basketbal l  and coached volleyball  for 5th graders .  
C u rrently s h e  i s  in tennis ,  volunteers for the Trust in Teens program that mentors 
elementary students, and works part-time as a lifeg uard .  She puts fami ly first, has strong 
relationsh ips with her friends, helps out with her l ittle brother and s ister, and I could n't be 
more proud of her. 

Ad riahna hugs every teacher and compliments all her friends and fel low students when she 
sees them . She has a strong love for learn ing new things;  she is a g reat reader, and never 
wa nts to miss school ,  even when she is sick. 

Dexter shows lots of leadership ski l ls when working in groups or playing with other chi ldre n .  
He excels a t  fo l lowing classroom rules. He i s  great a t  count ing,  writi ng ,  a n d  word 
recogn ition . 

I n  both kindergarten conferences their teachers have expressed they can tell the students 
that have g one to Head Start and the ones who haven 't. They just get it a lot q u icker than 
the rest. 

I wish that I had that same opportu nity when I was a chi ld .  I strongly bel ieve that Head Start 
has had a positive impact on my chi ld ren ,  their futu re ,  and wil l  continue to benefit them 
throughout their lives . 

I n  closing I wou ld l ike add one accomplishment that I am incredibly proud of a nd that can be 
d i rectly attributed to Head Start .  In spring of 2014, several staff members and Joey Kolosky 
-the d i rector of West R iver Head Start -nom inated me for the National Head Start 
Association's Parent of the Year Award . 

I am proud ,  and h umbled , to say that I won this prestig ious award . 

I am in  no way a perfect parent, or perfect dad.  Like everyone else in this room I have 
flaws . However I do try my best to be the best person and parent I can be . The staff at 
West River Head Sta rt recog n ized th is in me. I never asked to be honored in this way, but I 
wi l l  say that I take this accomplishment with pride and wi l l  do my best to represent Head 
Start and North Dakota at the 2015 National Head Start Conference in Washington DC this 
March . 
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a CALL FOR ACTION - HB 1410 - STATE FUNDING TO EXPAND HEAD START 

Good Morning Chairman Weisz and Members of the Committee. 

My name is Dawn Wi l l iams and I am the Di rector of the North Dakota Head Sta rt 

Association .  I am reading testimony from Dr. Sharon Hansen, the Director of the Commun ity 

Action Partnersh ip  Head Sta rt program serving the eight southwestern counties of North 

Dakota. I am here today in  her place testifying in  support of House Bi l l  1410. 

Dr. Jack Shon koff, Di rector of the Center of the Developing Child at Harvard U niversity said, 

"The Foundation of a Successfu l Society Is  Bu i lt i n  Early Ch i ldhood ." His research found :  

• Strong association between ch i ldren's cogn it ive ski l l s  before they enter k indergarten 

with ach ievement in  e lementary and h igh school. 
• H igh school completion can even be predicted based on genera l  cogn itive ab i l ity i n  

t h e  preschool years. (Nationa l  Research Counc i l  a n d  Institute of Medic ine.2000, 

Neurons to Neighborhoods: The Science of Early Childhood Development. 

Washington, D .C . :  National Academy Press . )  

We a re at a un ique crossroad of unprecedented economic development and we have an  

i ncred ib le opportun ity to i nvest in  North Dakota's future. We a l l  take very seriously our  

responsibi l it ies as stewards of  our state's resources whi le  bu i ld ing  the infrastructure crit ical 

to susta i n  our economic v iabi l ity. We must not forget that a critica l component of that 

infrastructure is the wel l  being of our youngest cit izens . 

Fami l ies moving i nto our  state for employment a re seeking h igh qua l ity services for their 

ch i ldren .  One of those services we are asked about t ime and t ime aga in  is ,  "Where a re your 

preschools?" Fami l ies have demonstrated a range of emotions when to ld they must fi n d  and 

pay for a private preschool, if one exists i n  the area they l ive, and they can afford the tuit ion, 

or face the rea l ization that they wi l l  not be ab le to provide their preschool chi ld with a true 

"head sta rt" . 

North Dakota preschool ch i ldren are less l i kely than other ch i ldren i n  our nation to attend 

ea rly education p rograms. Early ch i ldhood specia l  education and Head Start programs serve 

on ly 22% of 4-year o ld ch i ldren and 15% of 3-year old ch i ldren who reside i n  North Dakota 

( The state of preschool: 2013 State preschool yearbook. New Brunswick, NJ : Rutgers, The 

State U n iversity of New Jersey, Nationa l  I nstitute for Early Education Research ) .  

As of  December 2014, 768 fami lies had appl ied for ND Head Sta rt but  were u nserved .  These 

ch i ldren enter school at risk for ach ieving the h igh standards a l l  schools are being held to. 

Ch i ldren in the lowest socioeconomic group have average cognitive scores that are 60% 

below those of the most affluent groups upon entry i nto kindergarten .  Stud ies have shown 

that the ach ievement gap between disadvantaged and advantaged ch i ldren  widens as they 

move through school i n  spite of extra tutoring, summer school, or special ed ucation services 

that requ i re s ignificant state and local funding (Davison, et a l . , 2004) . 
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We have a classic case of "Pay me now or Pay me later" developing before our eyes . The 

national cost of fa i l i ng to provide at least two years of ea rly chi ldhood education has been 

est imated at $100,000 for every chi ld born into poverty. Comprehensive preschool programs 

l i ke Head Start improve early learning and development whi le  decreas ing school fa i l u re, 

crime, and de l inquency. Economists have est imated a 25% savi ngs from a reduced need for 

specia l  education and services from the crimina l  justice system (Committee of Economic 

Development. 2006. The Economic Promise of Investing in High-Quality Preschool: Using 

Early Education to Improve Economic Growth and the Fiscal Sustainability of States and the 

Nation). 

During the 2013-2014 program year approximately 38% of the ch i ld ren  enro l led i n  North 

Dakota Head Sta rt programs have d isabi l it ies requ i ri ng specia l  education services. The North 

Dakota Head Start programs have col laborated with the local  school d istricts i n  many 

commun ities to provide those needed specia l education services that have a l lowed these 

ch i ldren with d isabi l ities to na rrow the ach ievement gap BEFORE they entered k indergarten .  

This has resulted in  an enormous cost savings to school d istricts when they have not needed 

to provide intensive specia l  education services for the rema in ing th irteen yea rs of that 

ch i ld's publ ic educat ion.  

I n  our neighboring state of M innesota, the Bush Foundation supported the Wi lder Research 

study. This study found that it cost the state $42 m i l l ion of per-pu pi l  money a nnua l ly 

because of students d ropping out before graduation and another $24.4 m i l l ion annua l ly for 

special education and grade repetition costs that cou ld  be attributed to ch i ld ren  entering 

kindergarten under prepared . 

North Dakota's economic futu re depends on our ch i ldren getting off to the right start. House 

B i l l  1410 is asking for an investment in our state's future. Harvard's Center on the 

Developing Chi ld has found that early ch i ldhood programs for low-income ch i ldren generate 

retu rns between $4 and $9 for every dol lar  i nvested in these programs. Even at the lowest 

end of th is range the $5 m i l l ion investment of House B i l l  1410 has the potentia l  to save the 

citizens of North Dakota $20 mi l l ion annua l ly. Today, we wou ld  be hard pressed to find any 

other type of i nvestment with that level of return.  As James Heckman,  a Nobel Prize winn ing 

economist has demonstrated from h is  work on human capitol, an  investment during the 

preschool years yields a sign ificantly greater return than an i nvestment during any other 

t ime of a ch i ld's l ife . 

North Dakota's Head Start programs are willing to do their part in leading North Dakota 

i nto a successful and prosperous future !  I strongly urge the support of House Bil l 1410. 

Thank  you for you r  t ime. 

• 

• 

• 
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• Head Start Research : As researchers, we offer some facts about Head Start that a re worth 

remembering: Head Sta rt improves the odds and the options for at-risk kids for a l ifet ime. 

Kids that have been through Head Sta rt and Early Head Sta rt are healthier, more 

academica l ly accompl ished, more l ikely to be employed, commit fewer crimes, and 

contribute more to society. 

• 

• 

Simply put: Head Start works. It's been proven. Head Start improves the odds and the 

options for at-risk kids for a l ifet ime. Kids that have been through Head Sta rt and Early Head 

Sta rt a re healthier, more academical ly accompl ished, more l ikely to be employed, commit 

fewer crimes, and contribute more to society. 

Studies of Head Start programs found that Head Start increases educational achievement: 

ra is ing test scores, decreas ing the need for chi ldren to receive specia l  education services and 

mak ing it less l i kely that ch i ldren wi l l  repeat a grade.1 Head Start graduates a re a lso more 

l i kely to graduate from high school and attend col lege.2  

Head Start's impact on child health is impressive. Li kely because of its requ i red medical 

screen ings, vacci nat ions, and emphasis on nutrition, Head Start reduces by as much as 50 

percent the mortal ity rates for 5- to 9-year-olds.3 A Head Start ch i ld is 19 to 25 percent less 

l i kely to smoke as an adu lt .4 

Head Start parents receiving health literacy decreased annual Medicaid costs by $232 per 

fami ly.s 

H ead Start graduates a re 12 percent less likely to be booked or charged with a crime.6 Th is 

reduction translates i nto savings for crime victims, loca l, state, and federal governments, and 

the American taxpayer. 

National Impact Study of Head Start found that ch i ldren attend ing Head Start made 

significant cognitive and socio-emotional gains compared with the control group ch i ldren  

du ri ng the Head Sta rt year and were i n  better health compared to the control group 

ch i ldren.1 

And it is not just the at-risk kids who benefit. Head Start and Early Head Sta rt a lso provide 

improved parenting skil ls and practices.s Head Sta rt's emphasis on parenta l involvement 

contributes to the upward mobil ity of Head Start parents by helping to move them out of 

poverty, 9 and Early Head Start parents are much more l ikely to participate in job training 

programs and more l ikely to have a job.10 Head Start and Early Head Start are critical 

gateways to employment . 



1 Barnett, W. (2002, September 13) .  The Battle Over Head Start: What the Research Shows. 

Presentation at a Science and Publ ic Pol icy Briefing Sponsored by the Federation of Behaviora l, 

Psychologica l, and Cognitive Sciences; Barnett, W. and H ustedt, J .  (2005). Head Start's lasting 

benefits. Infants & Young Children, 18 (1 ) :  16-24; Ludwig, J .  and Mi l ler, D .  (2007). Does Head Sta rt 

improve chi ldren's l ife chances? Evidence from a regression discontinu ity design. The Quarterly 

Journal of Economics, 122 ( 1 ) :  159-208. 

2 Ludwig, J .  and M il ler, D .  (2007) .  Does Head Start improve chi ldren's l ife chances? Evidence from a 

regression discont inuity design. The Quarterly Journal of Economics, 122 ( 1 ) :  159-208. 

3 Ib id.  

4 Anderson, K .H ., Foster, J . E ., & Frisvold, D .E .  (2009) .  Investing in health :  The long-term impact of 

Head Start on smoking. Economic Inquiry, 48 (3), 587-602. 

4 

5 Herman, A. (2005, Fa l l ) .  Making a Difference in Head Start Famil ies' Hea lth Ca re .  Dialog Briefs, 9(1) :  

4 .  

6 Garces, E. ,  Thomas, D.  and Cu rrie, J .  (2002, September). Longer-Term Effects of  Head Start. 

American Economic Review, 92 (4): 999-1012 

7 US Department of Hea lth and Human Services. ( 2010, January). Head Start Impact Study F ina l  
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N AT I O N A L  F O R U M  O N  E A R LY C H I L D H O O D  P R O G R A M  E VA L U AT I O N  

Cost/ Benefit for Two Early Chi ldhood Programs 
( Dollars returned for each dollar invested) 
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Perry Preschool 
Costs and Benefits Over 62 Years 

Program Cost 
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Higher Participants' Earnings 
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Preventive Intervention is More Efficient and 
Prod uces More Favorable Outcomes 
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House Human Services Committee 

February 2, 2015 

House Bi l l  1410 

Kim Jacobson, Director - Trai l l  County Social  Services 

Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Service Committee, my name is Kim 

Jacobson .  I am the  Director of  Tra i l l  County Socia l  Services located in  Hi l lsboro, North Dakota. 

I am also a member of the North Dakota Cou nty Social Service Di rector's Association . 

I regret that I cannot be present at today's hearing. Please consider my written testimony in  support 

of House Bi l l  1410. 

As a County Social  Service Agency, we regula rly partner with local Head Start Programs. 

Fortunately, in  Tra i l l  County we have access to an outstanding Head Start Program, Mayvi l le  State 

Un iversity Chi ld Development Programs. The program is an integra l part of our community. Tra i l l  

County Social Services views Head Start is an important partner in  helping keep chi ldren safe, fami lies 

together, and reducing the l i kel ihood of chi ld abuse/neglect. 

Prior to my time with Tra i l l  County, I was employed with the North Dakota Department of Publ ic 

• 
I nstruction, Chi ld Nutrition and Food Distri bution Programs. During my ten years with DPI ,  I had the 

opportunity to visit each Head Start Program in  North Dakota, i ncluding urban, rural, and tribal 

programs. Th is experience impressed upon me the many outstand ing Head Start programs we have 

in North Dakota, but I a lso saw struggle. Long waiting l ists, needs for extending programing to fu l l -

day, staffing needs, facil ity needs, equipment needs were chal lenges facing many programs. I n  the 

end, there was one common factor, too many needs and lack of adequate funds. 

North Dakota is one of few states in  the Un ion that does not provide state funds to Head Start. 

House Bi l l  1410 wou ld provide up  to $5 mil l ion dol lars from the state genera l fund to provide grants 

to Head Start Programs with the goa l of i ncreasing the number of low-income or at risk North Dakota 

• fami l ies served, expansion of service area to underserved areas, coordination with l icensed chi ld care 

programs, and providing innovative ways in serving chi ldren and fami lies. 
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Qua lity early care and education is crucial to supporting parents, our  communities, and our  

workforce. Head Start serves as a safety net for low-income chi ldren  and  famil ies .  The North Dakota 

Legislature has heard for many years of the need to increase quality and dependable care to our  

working famil ies. Head Start is evidenced-based model that helps meet that n eed and can be 

effectively and efficiently expanded to serve more chi ldren and families. 

House Bil l 1410 would help strengthen North Dakota Head Start Programs by providi ng critical 

grant dol lars to help meet community early chi ldhood care and education needs. I urge you to 

support passage of House Bil l  1410 with a "Do PASS" recommendation. Thank  you for your 

consideration.  
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Test imony on B e h a lf of 

The N o rth Da kota E co n o m ic Secu rity & P rospe rity A l l i a n ce ( N DESPA) 

Hou se B i l l  1410 - H o u se H u m a n  S e rvices Com m ittee 

F e b r u a ry 2, 2015 

Ch a i rm a n  W e isz and m e m b e rs of the Hou se H u m an Services Com m ittee, my n a m e  i s  

Karen E h re n s  a n d  I a m  r e p resent ing t h e  N o rth Da kota Eco n o m i c  Secu rity & Prosper ity 

A l l i a nce .  N D ES PA is a coa l it i o n  of c it izens and o rgan izations wo rk ing  to b u i l d  assets for  

N orth Da kota n s  of low and m o d e rate i ncome t h ro u gh p u b l ic  p o l i cy c h a nge.  I a m  h e re in  

s u p p o rt of H ouse B i l l  1410 t h at w o u l d  p rovi de state fu n d i ng for  Head Sta rt p rogra m s .  

Even i n  t h ese t i m es o f  p rospe rity, people o f  l o w  a n d  moderate- i n c o m e  - 1 o u t  o f  every 

9 N o rt h  Da kotans - struggle to m a ke ends m eet. IVl o re t h a n  75 p e rcent of t hese 

households  h ave earn e d  income - they a re work ing people a n d  fa m i l ies .  Th e re a re m ore 

than 77,000 people l iv ing  with low o r  m o de rate- i n come in N o rth Da kota, n e a r ly  25,000 

of who a re c h i l d re n  . 

Th is  com m ittee is wel l  acq u a i nted with the benefits of e a rly c h i l d hood ed u cat ion fo r 

N o rth Da kot a .  Qu a l ity p rogra m s  l i ke Head Sta rt, serving c h i l d ren from fa m i l i es with l o w  

i ncome, h e l p  to p re p a re stu de n ts for l<- 12 e d u cat ion and beyo n d, i m p rove w orkforce 

sk i l l s  and create better cit i z e n s .  Federal  Reserve C h a i r  J a net Y e l l e n ,  i n  a p resentat i o n  

fro m October  2014, n oted " Resea rch sh ows t h at c h i l dren from l ower- i n c o m e  

h o u s e h o l d s  who get good-q u a l ity p re- K i n d e rgarten ed u cati on a re m ore l i ke l y  t o  

gra d u ate fro m h igh schoo l  a n d  attend col lege as we l l  as h o l d  a j o b  a n d  h ave h igher  

earn i n gs, and  t h ey are l ess l i ke ly  to be i n c a rcerated or receive p u b l ic  ass ista n ce . "  

N D ESPA s u p po rts H B  1 4 1 0  a n d  the p rovis ion o f  g ra nts for N o rth Da kota H e a d  Sta rt 

p rogra m s .  We can pro b a b l y  a l l  a gree t h at N o rth Dakota is a great p l ace to l ive a n d  ra ise 

a fa m i ly .  We care about  our  q u a l ity of l ife and we strive to l ive h e a lthy l ives .  We want 

N o rt h  Da kota to stay t h at way and,  when o u r  ch i l d ren grow u p ,  we w a nt th is  state t o  be 

the p lace t h ey ra ise their  ch i l d re n .  For  that to h a p pen,  we h ave to i nvest i n  the e a rl y  

1 

5 



• education of young ch i l d re n .  Well-educated c h i l d ren h e l p  to b u i l d  h appy fam i l ies, strong 

com m u n ities and a rel i a b l e, prepared workforce . We can m ake early e d u cation m ore 

rel i a b le a n d  a ccess ib le  for more North Da kota fa mi l i es by i nvest ing in Head Sta rt 

progra ms in t h is way. 

R ES U LTS ( E a rly C h i l d h o o d  to End Poverty) report that, "in 2009, 15__,_� _.D.1.LUl9l!._C::_h i lgs_�_o 

u nd er age 18 were l iv ing in poverty ( 20.7 percent of a l l  chi l d re n ) .  I nfa nts a n d  tod d lers 

accou nt for 25 percent of the popu lation, yet h ave the h ighest poverty rates of a n y  age 

group in  the U n ited States. The fa m i ly's economic con d ition d u ri n g  e a rly c h i l d hood m ay 

be fa r m o re i m porta nt i n  s h a ping ch i ldre n's a b i l ity, behavior, a n d  ach ievement than  

con ditions l ater in  c h i l d h o o d .  PQ.Y._�r.:_t_y ca n h i n d er chi l d ren's a b i l ity to  l ea rn and  be 

h e a lthy and affects their  soci a l, emotiona l, a n d  beh avioral deve l o p m e nt .  

Research has sh own t h at p a rticipation in a q u a l ity early chi l d h oo d  e d ucation program 

• p rovid es ch i l d ren with t h e  n ecessary socia l ,  e m otiona l ,  a n d  cognitive sk i l l s  t h at conti n u e  

t o  d evelop th rougho ut t h e i r  l ife . The ski l ls  they gai n a lso contrib ute to red u ced costs to 

society t h ro ugh d ecreases in services, cri me rates, and  higher p ro d u ctivity l ater in l ife . 

By i nvesting in q u a l ity H e a d  Start program s, we are provi d i n g  o p p o rtun ities for e a rl y  

i ntervention whi le  laying a strong foundation for a l ifetime o f  l e a r n i ng a n d  prosperity. 

We know t h at the young c h i l d ren of tod ay a re the workforce a n d  p a re nts of tom o rrow. 

Education,  p a rticu l a rly early c h i l d hood education, is crucia l  to givi n g  our c h i l d re n  t h e  

opportunity t o  ach ieve . P rograms that seek t o  h e l p  those born i nto p overty o r  h e l p  l ow­

income fami l ies pay for c h i l d  care are a bsolutely vita l in ens u ri n g  t h at every American 

ch i l d  receives the ed ucatio n  h e  or she deserves ." 

Programs that a re designed to provide support for the parents, ch i l d ren,  a n d  fa m i l i es 

with resources that e n a b l e  them to succeed, a re j ust the ki n d  of p rogra ms n e e d e d  to 

• assure that N orth Da kota cont in u es to be the great p lace it is to ra i s e  our  c h i l d re n .  
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In a d dit ion, N CSL rep o rts o n  research done by the M inneapo l i s  Fede ral Reserve B a n k: 

"Art Ro ln ick  and Rob G ru n ewald  of the M i n nea pol is  Federal  Reserve Bank p u b l i s h ed a 

paper exa m in i ng the ret u rns on investm ent of earl y  education in M in n esota . T h e  

fin d i n gs h ave had s u c h  b r o a d  a p peal  that the a uthors have b een invited a ro u n d  t h e  

country t o  d iscuss the i r  fi n d i ngs. In  Earlv Childhood Development with a High Public 

Return, early education i nvestments are com p a red to other k inds  of state i n vestments, 

with the concl usion that e a rly e d ucation investments yield a return th at far exceeds t h e  

return o n  most p u b l ic p roje cts that are consi d e red economic d evelop ment. The report 

ra ises issues relevant to m o st states, i n c l u d i ng how to b u i l d  a n d  maintain a v i a b l e  state 

economy. Th e a uthors h ig h l ight the ro l e  of state subsi d ies w h i l e  d rawi ng on state 

experiences where subs id i es fa i l ed to create rea l  economic gains.  Th o ugh s u bs i d i es to 

education h ave been l o n gstan d i ng, the a utho rs a rgue t h at fu n d i n g  s h o u l d  be d i rected to 

early ed ucation because of the l ong-term effects. 

The N o rth Dakota Eco n o m i c  Security & Prosperity Al l iance u rges the comm ittee to p ass 

H B  1410 as an i nvestment i n  N orth Da kotans with low- i n come.  Attached to t h i s  

test imony is a l ist o f  N DESPA p a rtners who sta n d  i n  support o f  t h i s  l egis lat ion .  I wou l d  

b e  h ap py to take questions  from the Comm ittee. 
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No • Dakota Economic Secu rit & Prosperity Al l iance 
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AARP-ND 
North Da kota Women's Network 

CAWS North Da kota 

N orth D a kota Disabi l ities Advocacy Consorti u m  

North D a kota Com m u n ity Action Partners h i p  

N o rth Da kota Head Sta rt Associat ion 

N o rth Da kota H u man Rights Coa l it ion 

North Da kota U n ited 

Cha rles H a l l  Youth Services 

F a m i ly Voices of North Da kota 

American Association of University Women in N o rth Da kota 

Cha rles H a l l  Youth Services 

North Da kota Chapter of the N ational  Association of Socia l  Workers 

Chi ldca re AWARE 

Mental  H ea lth America of North Da kota 

Prevent Chi ld Abuse of N orth Da ko•a 

N orth Da kota Cou nty Socia l Service Di rectors Associ at i on 

NDESPA work to build and sustain a system of economir securit)f for all 

North Dakotans through pove ty awarenes and educatio I' g assroots 

and community capacity building, research and data development, and 

promotion o � policies and practices to eliminate disparities an obstacles 

fa achieving economic security . 

1003 E I nterstate Ave n ue,  Su ite #7 Bis m a rck, N D  58503 _NQ�-�£'.6-@_<!fil.��..:_Qrg 



( Testimony i n  S u pport of H ead Start 
H ouse .B i l l  1 4 1 0  

February 2 ,  2 0 1 5  

Ch a i rman Weisz and m e m bers o f  th e H ouse H uman Servi ces Committee, I a m  Karen 
E h rens from B ismarck and a m  h ere today c.s a p:-- ivate citizen, Registered D i etitian,  
publ ic  h ealth professional  and mother. 

l encourage you to cons i d er th e fun d i n g  o f  i:-l eetd Sta rt programs in N orth Dakota, by 
N o rth D akotans, for N orth D akotans. H ea d  Sta�·t pro vi d es compreh ensive servi ces to 
c h i l d ren and th eir fam i l i es, which i n c l u d e  h ealth and n utriti on programs. 

H ea d  Start h el ps fam i l i es access programs and s ervi ces that can l ead to better 
h ealth.  H ead Start can h elp famii ies access i m m unizati ons, health i n s urance and 
medical and d ental h omesi .  H ead Start p ro grams p rovi de qual ity meals and s n a cks 
that are p l anned to meet th e n utrition needs fo r th e age group.  H ead Start n ot o nly 
provi d es chi l d ren with access r n  food,  but also p rovides a model for what b a l a n ced 
m ea l s  a n d  snacks look l i ke, taste l i ke and feel l i ke. 

H ead Start p rograms p ro mote physi cal activity and development of chi l d ren ' s  gross 
m otor ski l l s .  \1\Thile chil d ren are at H ead Start, th ere is no televis ion viewing, which 
is benefi ci al in a n um b er o f  areas i n cl u d ing tim e  for physical a ctivity and less  
exposure to advertisements for foo d s  o f  l ow nutriti on q ual ity; three-quarters (7 3 %) 
o f  fo ods advertised o n  televis ion sh ows inte n d ed for chi l dren a re for convenience 
foo ds, fast foods and/or sweetsii . 

These are some of th e ways H ead Start benefits chi l d ren's h ea l th.  A recent study 
p u b l i shed i n  the journal  Pediatricsiii s h owed that chi l d ren with unhealthy w eigh t  
status w h o  participated i n  Head Start programs were m ore l ikely to have a h e a lthy 
weight status when starting Kind ergarten.  B oth chi ldren wh ose weight was a bove 
and below what is consid ered h ealthy when they started Head Start in Mi chigan 
were l ess  l ikely to be at th ose same unhealthy l evels when they started school .  

I n  N orth Dakota, we are being beaten when it comes to  improving chil dren's weigh 
status .  In some U.S .  states wh ere i nvestments have been made and actions taken, 
rates o f  chi ldh ood obesity are starting to l evel  off. B ut in our state this  i s  not 
happeni ng. From 2 0 0 3  to 2 0 1 3 ,  chi l dh ood overweigh t and obesity i n  N orth D akota 
i n creased by nearly one-th i rd ;  28.6  percent of children are overweight or obese 
(grades 9 - 1 2 ,  2 0 13 )h ' .  I n  a d ults, o besity rates are also rising. N o rth D akota i s  n ow 
ranked 14th in the nati on, up from 2 5th in the nati on, in its percentage o f  obese and 
overweight adult  residents. An oth er concern:  youth a cross th e U .S .  are experiencing 
substantia l ly h i gher rates of Type 2 d iabetes, previously cal l ed "adult onset 
d iabetes ."  I n  2 0 0 5 ,  45 p ercent of newly d i agn osed d iabetes cases in chi l d ren were 
Type 2 ,  a d ramatic i ncrease from th e 3 percent of cases in the 1 9 9 0's .  
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Head Start is one area where we are making strides in improving the health of our ( .. children. This legislative body has done a lot of work to set aside resources for the 
future of  our state, and for that, I thank you. I encourage this committee and the rest 
of the H ouse to consider that investing small amounts of money now to keep our 
children healthy, in all the dimensions of health including social, educational and 
physical, will lead to reduced costs for individuals and families in the future, and will 
also take pressure off resources needed for our state's future. 

I would be happy to take questi ons from the Committee. 

References: ·  
i httn : /  i eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov /hs!c ! a::r"C<.\ .ifa:::tsheets / d ocs /hs-nrog;am-fact-sheet-20 1 4.n.f.J: 
ii Kunkel D. et al. The Impact of Industry Self-Regulation on the Nutritional Quality of Foods 
Advertised to Children on Television. Oakland, CA: Children N ow, 2009 
iii httn: I /nediatrics.aannublications.o:·g J content/ eariv /2015 /01 /07 /neds.ZO 1 4- 1725.abstrac: 
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Mr. C hairman and committee members, I am here today to testify in support of House Bi l l  1 4 1 0  

and ask the committee to reinstate the funding to the $5 mil l ion dollars as identified i n  the initial 

bil l . My name i s  Al li son Johnson and I am the Executive Director of Mayvi l le State University 

Child Development Programs located in Trail l, Steele, Griggs, Nelson, Wal sh and Grand Forks 

Counties. I am here representing the President of North Dakota Head Start Association. The 

Association represents over 3200 low income chil dren, prenatal to age five, and families served 

by fourteen programs. 

What happens in early chi ldhood can influence a l ifetime of learning for every chi l d. Research 

supports high-quality pre-kindergarten programs as an effective strategy to improve education 

achievement. Studies show that children who attend high quality pre-kindergarten programs 

enter kindergarten with better language, reading, math and social ski l ls .  They have fewer grade 

retentions, less remediation, higher standardized scores and higher graduation rates. 1 

Since its beginning in 1 965, Head Start ' s  goal has been to boost the school readiness of low­

income children. Based on a whole child model, the program provides comprehensive services 

that include research based preschool education, medical, dental and mental health care, nutrition 

services, and support to parents to foster their chi l d ' s  development. 

There are thirteen Head Start programs in North Dakota serving over 2,500 income eligible 

children ages 3-5 in North Dakota. Head Start programs col laborate with school districts, chil d  

care, universities and other community partners t o  provide services in  areas as small as 

Anamoose and Gwinner and as large as Grand Forks and Fargo. There are over 1 20 Head Start 

classrooms in North Dakota. 

To be el igible for enrollment, families must complete an application, which scores fami lies based 

on income, age of chi ld, risk factors and family demographics to determine which fami lies have 

1 National Research Council and Institute of Medicine (2000) From neurons to neighborhoods: 

The science of early childhood development. Committee on Integrating the Science of Early 

Childhood Development. Jack P. Shonkoff and Deborah A. Phillips, eds. Board on Children, 

Youth, and Families, Commission on Behavioral and Social Sciences and Education. 

Washington, D.C.: National Academy Press 
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the greatest need fo r  services. A family o f  four cannot earn more than $23 ,850 to b e  eligible for 

the program. A single parent with one chi ld may not earn more $ 1 5,800. 1 0% of enrol lment is 

reserved for over income families. As of December 20 1 4, there are 750 chi ldren on waiting l i sts 

for Head Start services across the state of North Dakota. Most of the fami l ies on the waiting l ist 

are the working poor and cannot afford preschool or high quality chi ldcare. 

Head Start programs are guided by the Head Start Federal Performance Standards mandating 

programs to comply with over 2000 regulations. Head Start programs are monitored on a 

triennial cycle and are responsible for monthly, quarterly and annual reporting requirements. 

Head Start curriculum and environments are research based and focus on development through 

chi l d  directed experiences that provide play based opportunities for exploration, problem-solving 

ski l l s, and flexibil ity and encourage a love of learning. 

Head Start has a long history of data col lection and analysis of young chi ldren. The following 

charts demonstrate achievements of 4-year-old chil dren that participated in Head Start in 20 1 3 -

20 1 4 . 
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How is Head Start different that Pre-Kindergarten? Head Start focus on the overall development 

of the chil d  and family. Al l  children receive a physical, dental exam, developmental screening, 

vision and hearing screening, nutrition assessment, mental health assessment and have 

individualized education plans. Head Start nurses and case workers help families establ ish a 

medical home with a primary physician instead of util izing the emergency room. 

The second difference is that the program works directly with parents to strengthen adult ski l l s, 

which results in better chi ld outcomes. Parents are connected to resources, set goals, receive 

parent education, home visits, opportunities for volunteering and serve on advisory boards. 

According to a study by Walberg, family participation in education is twice as predictive of 

students' academic success as family socioeconomic status.2 Growing strong fami lies means 

helping parents connect with resources to get out of poverty and become advocates for their 

children. 

Why should North Dakota invest in a federal program? Head Start is serving North Dakota's 

most vulnerable chi ldren.  Our highest priority is to serve children in foster care, homeless and 

children who are at risk. The same children who wil l  enter public school not ready. Head Start 

programs lack sufficient funding to ensure educational quality. Fourteen states including 

2 Wal berg { 1984) in his review of 29 studies of school-parent programs 3 1 i; 
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Wi sconsin, Oklahoma and Alaska supplement the federal funding and help close the funding 

shortfall required for quality Head Start education. Additional state funding is often used to 

expand the number of funded slots in the state's Head Start program. In some cases, the funds 

are used for quality improvements, such as extended day and teacher salary enhancements. 

House Bill  1 4 1 0  would expand services to at risk children through additional Head Start slots, 

extending service hours of existing part day programs or enhance quality services by 

col laborating with local school districts and chi l dcare to meet the needs of families.  Head Start 

programs are especially interested in expanding eligibil ity using state dollars to serve the 

working poor who do not meet income eligibility. 

Head Start has fought a long battle disputing the myth of fade out effect. The Impact Study 

shows that while Head Start children arrive at kindergarten academical ly ahead of their peers, 

these children eventually catch up to the Head Start children. This is referred to as "fading out. "  

Children without Head Start experience catch up, the Head Start children don't "fade out ."  Head 

Start children perform on par with their peers demonstrating that Head Start helps to eliminate 

the achievement gap. 

Head Start Works. There are nationally recognized, long-term, Head Start specific research 

studies documenting the benefits of Head Start programs. All  programs have data and track 

school readiness outcomes documenting the positive impacts of their program. Head Start 

programs produce well documented, international ly recognized results: 

• Reduced mortal ity rates of young children 
• Higher vocabulary levels 
• Better emotional development (less challenging behaviors), 
• Fewer children referred to and placed in special education classes 
• Fewer grade repetition 
• Increased high school graduation rates 
• Significant impact on long-term outcomes of adults 1 9  years or older who attended Head 

Start, higher wages, better relationships (less domestic violence), etc. 
• And, Famil ies moving out of poverty 
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A s  the academic achievement stakes continue to rise, policy makers must recognize that 

preparing children for school is a shared responsibi l ity between the parents and the community. 

In a majority of communities across North Dakota high quality, early childhood education 

opportunities do not exist. Local school districts rely on federal, state and local funding to 

provide high quality education. Head Start urges the legislative assembly to recognize this is also 

true of services to our most at risk young chi ldren. The support of this committee wil l  be a first 

step in ensuring that children and fami l ies can overcome risk factors and succeed in school and 

in l ife. The success of every child translates to a more competitive workforce, a greater tax base 

whi le  reducing public expense in special education costs, public assistance, crime control and 

lost taxes. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on behalf of House Bill  1 4 1 0. I welcome any questions 

from the committee. 

Al l i son Johnson 
Mayvil l e  State University Child Development Programs 
Mayvil le, ND 5 8257 
Al l i son.j ohnson. 3 @mayvil l estate. edu 
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tor Address Phone Online 
Tammy Hoggarth 1411 12th Avenue NE 701-252-1821 cap6.com/programs/headatart.hbn 

Dr. Jerry Jonnson 3600 6th Ave North Grand Forks, ND 58203 701-746-2433 

Dr. Sharon Hansen 107 3rd Avenue SE Dickinson, ND 58601 701-227-3010 dickinson.k12.nd.us/ early _childhood/ 

Josef Kolosky 1007 18th St NW Mandan, ND 58554 701-667-8668 hitinc.org/services/west-river-head-
start 

Carmelita Fort Yates, ND 58r1s! 6os-425-2063 �--
Laurel Nybo 720 North 14th St Bismarck, ND 58501 701- 323- bismarck.k12.nd. us/BECEP /head-

00 start-/ 

Kelly B 509 St North New Town, ND s8'763 '701-627-4820 I 
CDI HS Serving 1805 Main St. Williston, ND 58802 701-6<><)-4003 
Williams Co. Concordia Church 
Bovnne 412 Ave N Port Totten, ND 58335 701-']66-4070 

H ea d  Start/Early Head Sta rt Program in  your a rea, p lease visit: http://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs .gov/hs lc/HeadSta rtOffices 

Head Start State Collaboration Office: Mark Schaefer - Administrator 

Email : marschaefer@nd.gov: 600 East Boulevard Ave, Dept. 325: Bismarck, ND 58505-0250 

For  more i nformatio n, please visit our  website at: www.nd .gov/d hs/services/ch i ldfamily/headsta rt/sites.htm l .  
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M y  name is  Jay Watson. I am 36  years old and a single parent of three children who have 
attended the West River Head Start program in Mandan. My eldest daughter Tyra - for two 
years; my youngest daughter Adriahna - for one year; and my son Dexter - for three years. As a 
chi ld, I did not attend Head Start or kindergarten. When I started first grade, I had difficulty 
following classroom rules. I didn't l ike school, and I couldn't wait to go home and play. Over 
the combined six years my children have been enrol led in Head Start, I have watched my 
children grow and learn and develop an appreciation for school .  

Tyra, my oldest, is now a senior in high school. She is  a great student, has always been able to  
make friends and truly enjoys school .  As a result of  the ski l ls  she learned while enrol led in Head 
Start, she made a seamless transition into kindergarten and then first grade. I attribute much of 
her abil ities, attitude, and appropriate school behaviors from the time she spent at Head Start. 
My youngest daughter, Adriahna is 8 and is in 2nd grade. She has high energy and a great 

personality. The social ski l ls  she learned at Head Start, combined with the classroom 
atmosphere, have really helped her excel .  Adriahna loves to read and write. She is fascinated by 
science and is one of the best students in her class. My son Dexter is now 6 and in kindergarten. 
He loves to go to school ,  he is  great at following classroom directions, and by his teachers 
account one of the smartest kids in his class. 

As a parent, I have always tried to actively participate in all aspects of my children' s  l ives.  I 
often see the advertisements on benches or signs that say "Dad, Be There" and it motivates me. 
As a chi ld my father traveled often for work, so I know first-hand the importance of being 

involved and what that means to my children. Three years ago when my children Started Head 
Start I was unemployed. I was able to attend every special event and parent hour they had in 
class and Started volunteering extra time and full days too. I even got to the point that I was 
asked to volunteer in a third class where my kids didn't attend and I was happy to help. I learned 
a lot about the Head Start program and was able to bui ld friendships with many students. Most 
importantly I was able to watch my kids grow and develop alongside the other children in the 
classrooms. 

The last two years Dexter spent at Head Start I was working full-time. After the great first year 
we had I missed spending so much time in the classroom. However, I am very fortunate that I 
have a great boss that allowed me to take time off and spend it with my kids at school .  I had been 
able to attend every parent hour and special function. In a continued effort to remain involved in 
my children' s  education I ran for policy council in Dexter's classroom and was appointed Vice 
Chairperson which in turn led to Chairperson. The more involved I became, the more I realized 
the importance this  environment had on my children. 

Head Start has had as strong of an impact on me as a parent as it has on my chi ldren. The 
leadership ski l l s  that I have learned while being involved with their program have helped me to 
be a better parent, improved my relationships with coworkers, and helped in my personal life. 
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Being on Policy Council has inspired me to join the PTO at Lewis and Clark where my kids now 
attend school .  This is  my second year and I am currently Vice President. I am always advocating 
for the students and I 'm trying to bring the same family atmosphere to the PTO and to the school 
that I enjoyed so much from being part of Head Start and its policy council .  Head Start's 
conscience discipl ine program has also helped me become a better parent and interact with my 
children in the same way they do at school to create consistency in our l ives. 

S ince leaving Head Start the positive effect it has left on my children is  clear. 

Tyra is a straight A student and is very outgoing. She has been in vol leybal l, track, cheerleading 
student managed for basketball and coached volleybal l for 5 th graders. Currently she is in tennis, 
volunteers for the Trust in Teens program that mentors elementary students, and works part-time 
as a l ifeguard. She puts family first, has strong relationships with her friends, helps out with her 
l ittle brother and sister, and I couldn't  be more proud of her. 

Adriahna hugs every teacher and compliments all her friends and fellow students when she sees 
them. She has a strong love for learning new things; she is  a great reader, and never wants to 
miss school, even when she is sick. 

Dexter shows lots of leadership ski l ls  when working in groups or playing with other chi ldren. 
He excels at following classroom rules. He is great at counting, writing, and word recognition. 

In both kindergarten conferences their teachers have expressed they can tell the students that 
have gone to Head Start and the ones who haven' t. They j ust get it a lot quicker than the rest. 

I wish that I had that same opportunity when I was a chi ld.  I strongly believe that Head Start has 
had a positive impact on my children, their future, and wil l  continue to benefit them throughout 
their lives. 

In closing I would l ike add one accomplishment that I am incredibly proud of and that can be 
directly attributed to Head Start. In spring of 20 1 4, several staff members and Joey Kolosky -the 
director of West River Head Start -nominated me for the National Head Start Association's  
Parent of the Year Award. 

I am proud, and humbled, to say that I won this prestigious award. 

I am in no way a perfect parent, or perfect dad. Like everyone else in this room I have flaws. 
However I do try my best to be the best person and parent I can be. The staff at West River 
Head Start recognized this  in me. I never asked to be honored in this way, but I will say that I 
take this accomplishment with pride and will do my best to represent Head Start and North 
Dakota at the 20 1 5  National Head Start Conference in Washington DC this Month. 

I recommend a "do pass" on this bi l l .  Thank you for your time and good day . 
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Josef Kolosky, Vice-President 
HIT, Inc. - Chi ldren and Family Services 
70 1 .3 0 1 .0728 (cell) 
70 1 .667.8668 (office) 
jkolosky@hitinc.org 
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Mister Chairman, Members of the Committee, I ask for your understanding so that I may be 
blunt . . .  

As a Head Start association we collectively have spoken about the effect of Early Childhood 
Education. We have discussed the research, we have spoken about the important findings, the 
connections and brain development, and so on. However this has not resonated in the past with 
many members of the legislature, and I ' l l  be the first to admit the importance of Head Start and 
ECE has been lost on many. 

I want to connect Head Start and the effects of a quality ECE program to North Dakotans and the 
impact Head Start has on our commuruties. I wil l  begin by asking you these questions : What if 
Head Start were gone? What if Head Start would disappear entirely? Would some entity take its 
place? 

There is  none. There is no other progran1 where children in poverty -or above income children in 
many cases, especial ly our rural areas- can go if Head Start disappears . So what does this mean 
for our local communities and state? 

First, parents will be forced to drop out of the workforce. There is no doubt in this .  And, contrary 
to popular belief, parents at Head Start are not looking for a hand out. This is a false stereotype 
that has purposely and effectively been spread through anti-Head Start propaganda. 

Our parents are hardworking people trying desperately to make ends meet - sometimes working 
two j obs to provide for their family. A prime example is Jay, our Head Start Parent of the Year, 
who did everything in his power, and more, to provide for his children. 

Head Start is a lifeline to these parents - above and below income. Head Start cares for children 
while parents are at work or going to school to better themselves. If Head Start would shut its 
doors, these parents would be out of the workforce. They would have to drop out of school . 

Think of the dollars that will be taken out of our economy? It's been said that the greatest 
welfare program is a job. Well, how can we all bel ieve that but then give these parents no choice 
but to drop out of the workforce or abandon their dreams of self-improvement? 

Second, Head Start helps children be kindergarten ready and is invaluable to the publ ic schools. 
When Head Start chi ldren walk in the door a kindergarten teacher does not have to spend extra 
time teaching social ski l ls, rules and proper behavior; they don't  have to concentrate on basic 



number and letter recognition, or even how to eat at a lunch table. That kindergarten teacher can 
concentrate at the task at hand: educating children so they have a chance; educating children so 
they can keep pace with their peers and succeed. 

Kindergarten teachers know the invaluable role we play in preparing children. In fact, the public 
schools look to us to provide this service. We collaborate with the public schools throughout the 
state to ensure that the chi ldren in their community are ready for school .  We work incredibly 
close with teachers, school counselors, special education staff, and administrators to transition 
students smoothly into their new education environment in the K- 1 2  system. 

In addition, I would l ike to add, we would partner with the public schools if any other pre-k bi l l  
would pass.  I think it is  vital because for pre-k to work in this state there has to be enough funds 
to pay a teacher the market wage, usually starting at $33 ,500 dollars in the rural areas, and 
upwards of $40,000 in the cities -thjs fact is often forgotten. Partnering with the public schools 
wil l  ensure this .  Head Start funds can be braided with public school funds to create an 
environment where all children can thrive and learn. 

Furthermore, I would l ike to say, helping children should not political fodder. No young chi ld  is  
responsible for their station in l ife.  You and I didn't have a choice of what environment we were 
born into. There is no one that can persuade me that a three or four year old has the capabi l ity to 
defend themselves from a l ife of poverty, abuse, disabi lity, or educational neglect. That ' s  why 
Head Start exists. We are a l ifeline for these children. 

Moreover, I must address that there are several arguments against Head Start out there. And I 've 
heard on more than one occasion, the argument: " If  the Feds want this program, they should fund 
it. " That argument is a contradiction and it ignores some inconvenient facts. 

Have we looked at the number of multiple sources of federal dollars we take in as a state? 

Have we really looked at how many programs are funded through a combination of federal and 
state dollars all so we can better serve the people of North Dakota? 

I can give you examples that range from road construction to Title I education dollars to farm 
programs.  And that 's  just for starters. 

Why can we accept that money with open arms, add it to our own dollars, but not do the same 
with Head Start? Are our pre-k children not worth it? I would argue they are worth it - they are 
worth every cent because they are our state' s  most valuable asset. 

I 've said this before, and I wil l  say it again :  There are three populations in our society that should 
be looked after with great care: Our elderly because we owe it to them, our mentally 
handicapped because we have an obligation to care for the least of these, and our children -
especial ly our young chi ldren - because they are our future. 

Those children that can't defend themselves, who are at-risk need the most protection. Those 
children that have the risk of l iving a l ife of poverty or l ife of destitution need protection. 



Senators, we either make the investment today in early education or we will surely pay for it later 
in incarceration and more programs. Head Start serves the most vulnerable of young children. 
They can go forward to a brighter tomorrow or slide back into the circle of dependency and 
depravation that they were born into. 

I know you don't want to see that happen. I know we are better than that. I pray that you can 
look past the propaganda and biased think tank reports and look at the child. 

And then ask yourself: "If not for Head Start, who will help this child?" 

I recommend a do pass on this bill. Thank you for your attention. 
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The North Dakota Economic Security & Prosperity Alliance (NDESPA) 

House Bil l  1410 - Senate Education Committee 

March 17, 2015 

Chairman Flakoll and mem bers of the Senate Education Committee, my name is Karen 

Ehrens and I am representing the North Dakota Economic Security & Prosperity Alliance. 

NDESPA is a coalition of citizens and organizations working to build assets for North 

Dakotans of low and moderate income through public policy change. I am here in support 

of House Bi l l  1410 that would provide state funding for Head Start programs. 

Even in these times of prosperity, people of low and moderate-income - 1 out of every 9 

North Dakotans - struggle to make ends meet. More than 75 percent of these households 

have earned income - they are working people and fami lies. There a re more than 77,000 

people living with low or moderate-income in North Dakota, nearly 25,000 of who are 

chi ldren. 

This committee is wel l  acquainted with the benefits of early chi ldhood education for North 

Dakota. Qua lity programs like Head Start, serving children from families with low income, 

help to prepare students for K-12 education and beyond, improve workforce skills and 

create better citizens. Federal  Reserve Chair Janet Yellen, in a presentation from October 

2014, noted "Research shows that child ren from lower-income households who get good­

qual ity p re-Kindergarten education are more l ikely to graduate from high school and 

attend college as well as hold a job and have higher earnings, and they are less l ikely to be 

incarcerated or receive public assistance." 

NDESPA supports HB 1410 and the provision of grants for North Dakota Head Start 

programs. We can probably al l  agree that North Dakota is a great place to live and raise a 

family. We care about our quality of life and we strive to live healthy lives. We want North 

Dakota to stay that way and, when our children grow up, we want this state to be the place 

l they raise their children. For that to happen, we have to invest in the early education of 



RESU LTS {Early Childhood to End Poverty) report that, "in 2009, 15 .5 m ill ion chi ldren under 

age 18 were living in poverty (20.7 percent of all  children). Infants and toddlers account for 

25 percent of the population, yet have the h ighest poverty rates of any age group in the 

United States. The family's economic condition during early childhood may be far more 

important in shaping children's abil ity, behavior, and achievement than cond itions later in  

childhood. Poverty can hinder children's abi lity to learn and be healthy and affects their 

socia l, emotional, and behavioral development. 

Research has shown that participation in a quality early childhood education program 

provides children with the necessary social, emotional, and cognitive skil ls that continue to 

develop throughout their life. The skills they gain also contribute to red uced costs to 

society through decreases in services, crime rates, and h igher productivity later in l ife. By 

investing in quality Head Start p rograms, we are p roviding opportunities for early 

intervention while laying a strong foundation for a l ifetime of learning and prosperity. We 

know that the young children of today are the workforce and parents of tomorrow. 

Education, particularly early childhood education, is crucial to giving our children the 

opportunity to achieve. Programs that seek to help those born into poverty or help low­

income fami lies pay for child care are absolutely vital in ensuring that every American child 

receives the education he or she deserves." 

Programs that are designed to provide support for the parents, children, and fami l ies with 

resources that enable them to succeed, are just the kind of programs needed to assure that 

North Dakota contin ues to be the great p lace it is to raise our children. 

2-\ "\ 
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In addition, NCSL reports on research done by the Minneapolis Federal Reserve Bank: "Art 

Rolnick and Rob Grunewald of the Minneapolis Federa l  Reserve Bank published a paper . 

examining the returns on investment of early education in Minnesota. The findings h ave 

had such broad a ppeal that the a uthors have been invited around the country to discuss 

their findings. In Early Childhood Development with a High Public Return, early education 

investments are compared to other kinds of state investments, with the conclusion that 

early education investments yield a return that far exceeds the return on most public 

projects that are considered economic development. The report raises issues relevant to 

most states, i ncluding how to build and maintai n  a viable state economy. The authors 

highlight the role of state subsidies while drawing on state experiences where subsidies 

fai led to create rea l  economic gains. Though subsidies to education . h ave been 

longstanding, the a uthors argue that funding should be d i rected to early education because 

of the long-term effects. 

The N orth Dakota Economic Security & Prosperity Alliance u rges the. committee to pass H B  

1410 a s  a n  i nvestment in  North Dakotans with low-income. Attached to this testimony i s  a 

list of N D ESPA partners 
,
who stand in support of this legislation. I would be h appy to take 

questions from the Committee. 
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AARP-ND 

North Dakota Women's Network 

CAWS North Dakota 

North Dakota Disabil ities Advocacy Consortium 

North Dakota Community Action Partnership 

North Dakota Head Start Association 

North Dakota Human Rights Coalition 

North Dakota United 

Charles Hall  Youth Services 

Family Voices of North Dakota 

American Association of University Women in North Dakota 

Charles Hall  Youth Services 

North Dakota Chapter of the National Association of Social Workers 

Childcare AWARE 

Mental Health America of North Dakota 

Prevent Child Abuse of North Dakota 

North Dakota County Social Service Directors Association 

NDESPA works to build and sustain a system of economic security for all 
North Dakotans through poverty awareness and education, grassroots 
and community capacity building, research and data development, and 

promotion of policies and practices to eliminate disparities and obstacles 
for achieving economic security. 

1003 E Interstate Avenue, Suite #7 Bismarck, N D  58503 N D ESPA@agree.org 
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Testimony in Support of Head Start 
House Bi l l  1410 
March 17, 2015  

'S� fAUCA-Ht>-, 
Chai.rman Flakoll and members of the II0t1sc H1:1maR �srvic8� Committee, I am 
Karen Ehrens from Bismarck and am here today as a private citizen, Registered 
Dietitian, public health professional and mother. 

I encourage you to consider the funding of Head Start programs in  N orth Dakota, by 
N orth Dakotans, for North Dakotans. Head Start provides comprehensive services to 
chi ldren and their famil ies, which include health and nutrition programs. 

Head Start helps famil ies access programs and services that can lead to better 
health. Head Start can help families access i mmunizations, health insurance and 
medical  and dental homesi. H ead Start programs provide quality meals and snacks 
that are planned to meet the nutrition needs for the age group. Head Start not only 
provides children with access to food, but also provides a model for what balanced 
meals and snacks look l ike, taste l ike and feel l ike. 

Head Start programs promote physical activity and development of children's gross 
m otor skills. While  children are at Head Start, there is no television viewing, which 
is beneficial in a number of areas including time for physical activity and less 
exposure to advertisements for foods of low nutrition quality; three-quarters (73%) 
o f  foods advertised on television shows intended for children are for convenience 
foo ds, fast foods and/or sweetsii. 

Head Start may benefit children's health in yet another way. A recent study 
publ ished in the journal Pediatricsiii showed that chi ldren with unhealthy weight 
Stc\tus who participated in Head Start programs were more l ikely to have a healthy 
weight status when starting Kindergarten. Both children whose weight was above 
and below what is considered healthy when they started Head Start in Michigan 
were less l ikely to be at those same unhealthy levels when they started school .  

I n  North Dakota, we are being beaten when it comes to improving children's weight 
status. In some U.S. states where investments have been made and actions taken, 
rates of childhood obesity are starting to level off. But in our state this is not 
happening. From 2003 to 2013, childhood overweight and obesity in North Dakota 
increased by nearly one-third; 28.6 percent of children are overweight or obese 
(grades 9 -12, 2013) iv. In adults, obesity rates are also risi ng. North Dakota is now 
ranked 14th in  the nation, up from 2 5th in the nation, in its percentage of obese and 
overweight adu lt residents. Another concern : youth across the U.S .  are exp eriencing 
substantial ly higher rates of  Type 2 diabetes, previously cal led "adult o nset 
diabetes." In 2005, 45 percent of newly diagnosed diabetes cases in children were 
Type 2, a dramatic increase from the 3 percent of cases in the 1990's. 



Head Start is one area where we are making strides in improving the health of our 
children. This legislative body has done a lot of work to set aside resources for the 
future of our state, and for that, I thank you. I encourage this committee and the rest 
of the House to consider that investing small amounts of money now to keep our 
children healthy, in all the dimensions of health including social, educational and 
physical, will lead to reduced costs for individuals and families in the future, and will 
also take pressure off resources needed for our state's future. 

I would be happy to take questions from the Committee. 

References: 
i http://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/hslc/data/factsheets/docs/hs-program-fact-sheet-2014.pdf 

ii Kunkel D. et al. The Impact oflndustry Self-Regulation on the Nutritional Quality of Foods 
Advertised to Children on Television. Oakland, CA: Children Now, 2009 
m http: //pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/early/20 1 5  /01 /07 /peds.20 14- 1725.abstract 

iv http://nccd.cdc.gov/youthonline/App /Results.aspx?LID=ND 



Mandan Public School District 
Brave Center 

M arch 1 1 , 20 1 5  

Dear Esteemed Members of the Senate Education Committee, 

Mike Bitz, Superintendent 
Mandan Public Schools 
90 1 Division Street NW 

Mandan, ND 58554 

I would l ike to offer my support for House Bil l  1 4 1 0  that establ ishes funding for North 
Dakota Head Start programs. Head Start is an important asset to the Mandan community and 
Mandan Public Schools. Not only does Head Start help the community' s  most vulnerable 
children become prepared for K-1 2  schooling, but it also eases the burden on elementary school 
teachers and staff. 

Head Start i s  an invaluable resource to MPS that enables children to enter kindergarten at 
developmentally appropriate levels. Because of Head Start, kindergarten teachers can 
immediately get to work instructing all students, and not spend valuable time catching at-risk 
students up to their peers. The time saved is redirected into building the foundation of learning 
that wil l  propel these students through the K- 1 2  education system. 

Furthermore, Mandan Public Schools has a long history collaborating with Head Start. 
Many children receiving special education services at MPS receive supplemental instruction and 
support at the West River Head Start Mandan center. Teachers, special education staff, and 
support personnel from both organizations work together to ensure students' special education 
needs are met, and that they receive a quality education. This collaboration facilitates the 
development of essential skil ls  that enables students to become school ready. Without Head 
Start a vacuum would open that MPS would have to fill by providing space -which is not 
currently  available - energy, time, and resources. 

I encourage you to vote "do pass" on House Bil l  1 4 1 0. Creating an education system for 
our youngest and most vulnerable children is imperative for their success -in school and life.  
Head Start acts as a catalyst to help children achieve this success. 

Sincerely, 

" . ��·� 
Mike Bitz, Superintendent 
Mandan Public Schools 
M i ke.Bitz@msd l .org 
(70 1 )  75 1 -6500 

90 1 Division St. NW, Mandan, North Dakota 5 8 5 54 
Telephone: 70 1 -75 1 -6500 · Fax: 70 1 -75 1 -6674 

www.mandan.k 1 2.nd.us 
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Senate Education Committee 

March 17, 2015 

House Bill 1410 

Kim J acobson, Director - Trai l l  Cou nty Socia l  Services 

Chairman Flakol l  and members of the Senate Education Committee, my name is Kim 

Jacobson.  I am the D irector of Trai l l  County Socia l  Services located in  H i l lsboro, North Dakota .  

I am  also a member of the North Dakota County Socia l  Service D irector's Association. My testimony 

in support of House Bi l l  1410. 

As a County Socia l  Service Agency, we regu larly partner with local Head Start Programs. 

Fortunately, in Tra i l l  County we have access to an outstanding Head Start Program, Mayvi l le State 

Un iversity Chi ld Development Programs. The program is an i ntegra l part of our community. Tra i l l  

County Socia l  Services views Head Start is an  important partner i n  help ing keep chi ldren safe, fami l ies 

together, and red ucing the l i kel ihood of chi ld abuse/neglect. 

Prior to my t ime with Tra i l l  County, I was employed with the North Dakota Department of Publ ic 

Instruction, Chi ld N utrit ion and Food Distribution Programs.  During my ten years with DPI ,  I had the 

opportun ity to vis it each Head Start Program in  North Dakota, including u rban, rura l, and tribal  

programs. This experience impressed upon me the many outstanding Head Start programs we have 

in  North Dakota, b ut I a lso saw struggle. Long waiting l ists, needs for fu l l-day programming, staffing 

needs, faci l ity needs, equ ipment needs were chal lenges facing many programs. In  the end, there was 

one common factor, too many needs and lack of adequate funds. 

Qual ity early care and education is crucia l  to supporting parents, our commun ities, and our 

workforce. Head Sta rt serves as a safety net for low-income chi ldren and fam i lies. The North Dakota 

Legislature has heard for many years of the need to i ncrease qual ity and dependable care to our 

working fami li es .  Head Start is evidenced-based model that helps meet that need and can be 

l effectively and efficiently expanded to serve more chi ldren and fam i l ies .  
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N orth Dakota is one of few states in the Union that does not provide state funds to Head Start. 

By providing state funds to the Head Start Program, the nu mber of n umber of low-income or at risk 

North Dakota chi ldren and famil ies serviced could be increased, service could be expanded to 

u nderserved a reas, and collaboration could be enhanced with l icensed child care programs to meet 

the n eeds of fam i lies and children. 

H ouse Bi l l  1410 wou l d  help strengthen North Dakota Head Start Programs by providing critical 

dol lars to help m eet community early childhood care and education needs. I u rge you to 

reinstate adequate a ppropriations in order to make an meaningful i mpact to North Dakota Head Start 

Programs a n d  the chi ldren, famil ies, and communities they serve. Please support the passage of 

House Bil l  1410 with a "Do PASS" recommendation. Thank you for you r  consideration and I welcome 

any q uestions from the committee. 
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